
 

 

BOARD POLICY COMMITTEE 

 December 9, 2015  
1:30 p.m. 

Silicon Valley Leadership Group Foundation 
1300 South El Camino Real, Suite 100, Room 112A  

(Directions on page 2) 

AGENDA 

Agenda Item Presenter Page# 

1. Call To Order, and Roll Call (Bronitsky) 

Roster of Committee Members (Attachment) 

 

Pg 3 

2. Comments by Chair (Bronitsky)  

3. Public Comment (Bronitsky) 

Members of the public may address the committee on any issues not  
listed on the agenda that are within the purview of the committee.   
Comments on matters that are listed on the agenda may be made at the  
time the committee is considering each item. Each speaker is allowed  
a maximum of three (3) minutes.   

 

4. Consent Calendar (Bronitsky) 

A. Approval of Minutes from the August 12, 2015 meeting (Attachment) 

 

Pg 5 

5. Action Items 

A. Proposed Fiscal Year 2016-17 Bond Surcharges (Attachment) (Tang) 

Issue:  How much will the surcharges be for FY 2016-17? 

Information to Committee: Staff memo and oral report. 

Committee Action Requested:  That the Committee recommend Board approval of 
the proposed FY 2016-17 bond surcharges as presented in the staff memorandum. 

 

Pg 17 

B. Authorization to Extend Office Lease (Attachment) (Sandkulla) 

Issue: To request Board authority to negotiate and execute a new office 
lease within specified parameters 

Information to Committee:  A memo addressing the facts associated with 
the expiration of the current office lease and opportunities for a new lease. 

Committee Action Requested:  That the Committee recommend 
authorization of the CEO/General Manager to extend the current lease for 
a period of five years.  

Pg 23 

 

6. Reports (Sandkulla) 

A. Water Supply Update  

B. Pilot Water Transfer Progress Report 

C. Mid-Year 2015-16 Work Plan and Budget Review 

D. CEO’s Letter (Attachment) 

E. Board Policy Committee Calendar (Attachment) 

F. Correspondence Packet (Under Separate Cover) 

 

 

 

 

Pg 25 

Pg 27 

 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 1

http://www.bawsca.org/docs/15_Dec9_CorrespondenceList_FINAL_Packet.pdf


 2 

    

7. Comments by Committee Members (Bronitsky)  

8. Adjournment to the next meeting on February 10, 2016 at 1:30pm in the 1
st

 floor 
conference room of the BAWSCA office building, at 155 Bovet Road, San Mateo.    (Bronitsky) 

 

 

Upon request, the Board Policy Committee of the Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation Agency (BAWSCA) 
will provide for written agenda materials in appropriate alternative formats, or disability-related modification or 
accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to enable individuals with disabilities to participate in public 
meetings.  Please send a written request, including your name, mailing address, phone number and brief 
description of the requested materials and the preferred alternative format or auxiliary aid or service at least two 
(2) days before the meeting.  Requests should be sent to:  Bay Area Water Supply & Conservation Agency, 
155 Bovet Road, Suite 650, San Mateo, CA 94402 or by e-mail at bawsca@bawsca.org 

All public records that relate to an open session item of a meeting of the Board Policy Committee that are 
distributed to a majority of the Committee less than 72 hours before the meeting, excluding records that are 
exempt from disclosure pursuant to the California Public Records Act, will be available for inspection at 
BAWSCA, 155 Bovet Road, Suite 650, San Mateo, CA  94402 at the same time that those records are 
distributed or made available to a majority of the Committee.  

 

Directions to BAWSCA 

From 101:  Take Exit 416 for 3
rd

 Ave.  Keep right, follow signs for 3
rd

 Ave. W.  Continue on to E. 3
rd

 
Ave. Turn Left on El Camino Real.  Turn Right on Barneson Ave., to enter corner parking lot across 
from McDonald’s.   
 
From 92:  Exit at El Camino North.  Turn Left on Barneson Ave., to enter corner parking lot across 
from McDonald’s.    

 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 2

mailto:bawsca@bawsca.org


December 9, 2015 – Agenda Item #1 
 

 
 

 

 

 

BAY AREA WATER SUPPLY AND CONSERVATION AGENCY 
 

BOARD POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
 

Committee Roster: 
 
 

Charlie Bronitsky, Estero MID (Chair) 

Kirsten Keith, City of Menlo Park (Vice-Chair) 

Randy Breault, City of Brisbane/GVMID (BAWSCA Chair) 

Rob Guzzetta, California Water Service Company 

Gustav Larsson, City of Sunnyvale 

Jerry Marsalli, City of Santa Clara 

Al Mendall, City of Hayward (BAWSCA Vice-Chair) 

Irene O’Connell, City of San Bruno 

Barbara Pierce, Redwood City 

Louis Vella, Mid-Peninsula Water District 

John Weed, Alameda County Water District 

 
 
 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 3



(This page intentionally left blank.) 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 4



DRAFT 

Board Policy Committee Minutes August 12, 2015 

1 

BAY AREA WATER SUPPLY AND CONSERVATION AGENCY 

BOARD POLICY COMMITTEE 

August 12, 2015 – 1:30 p.m. 

BAWSCA Offices, 155 Bovet Road, San Mateo, 1
st
 Floor Conference Room  

MINUTES 

1. Call to Order: 1:30 p.m.:  Committee Chair Charlie Bronitsky called the meeting to order 

at 1:30 pm.  A list of Committee members who were present (9), absent (2) and other 

attendees is attached.  

The Committee took the following actions and discussed the following topics: 

 

2. Comments by the Chair:  Director Bronitsky welcomed the Committee members and 

thanked them for their service. 

 

3. Consent Calendar:   Approval of Minutes from the June 10, 2015 meeting 

Director O’Connell made a motion, seconded by Director Vella, that the minutes of 

the June 10, 2015 Board Policy Committee meeting be approved.   

The motion passed unanimously. 

 

4. Public Comments: 

Director Weed reported and provided a fact sheet on an Executive Order issued by the 

Federal Flood Risk Management Standard (FFMS) in January 2015.  The order changes 

the current 100-year Base Flood Elevation (BFE), used to determine federal floodplain 

requirements, to a 500-year BFE. 

The order has not been implemented yet, but it could impact each of the districts 

particularly those that have bayfronts or streams flowing through flat terrain. 

Secondly, ACWA is looking for Committee appointments.   There are numerous 

Committees which offers opportunities for constructive dialogue.   

In response to Director Guzzetta, Ms. Sandkulla stated that BAWSCA Board members can 

attend the ACWA conferences on behalf of BAWSCA.  BAWSCA allocates a budget for 

the attendance of up to two Board Members.  Board Members who attend on behalf of 

BAWSCA register through BAWSCA.  Board members can also choose to attend 

independently. 

5. Action Items: 

A. Resolution Approving Temporary Re-Appointment of Arthur Jensen as Special 

Counsel to the CEO/General Manager:  Ms. Sandkulla reported that Mr. Jensen was 

appointed as Special Counsel to the CEO/GM upon initiation of her administration in 

September of 2013.  The Board approved a subsequent one-year temporary re-

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 5



DRAFT 

Board Policy Committee Minutes August 12, 2015 

2 

appointment in 2014 for specific tasks included in the FY 2014-15 work plan that are 

critical to the agency. 

While Ms. Sandkulla anticipates this temporary reappointment as the last, she stated 

that Mr. Jensen’s service has and will continue to provide essential assistance in the 

negotiations with San Francisco related to the classification of assets under the Water 

Supply Agreement.   

BAWSCA negotiated a Settlement Agreement with San Francisco which will expire in 

September 30, 2015.  The negotiating team benefited from Mr. Jensen’s expertise on 

the subject.  His leadership on the technical side complimented General Counsel’s 

leadership on the legal side, and allowed Ms. Sandkulla to manage the executive 

discussions with SFPUC General Manager, Harlan Kelly.  The team created a very 

effective dynamic in moving the negotiations forward.   

Ms. Sandkulla further explained that BAWSCA contracts with PERS and the 

appointment of Mr. Jensen as Special Counsel must include specific  requirements for 

compliance including specified conditions of temporary appointment with limited 

hours of under 960 for the year.  All the requirements are reflected in a resolution that 

the Board will be asked to adopt.  Adoption of a resolution is also required by PERS. 

Ms. Sandkulla reported that the adopted FY 2015-16 workplan allocates 520 hours and 

a budget of $53,000 for Mr. Jensen’s services.  In actuality, his hour have been much 

less to date than planned.  Typically, his hours have been 5-6 hours a week, which will 

continue until the negotiations are completed.   

In the interest of the agency’s return on investment, Director Vella asked how Mr. 

Jensen’s services are evaluated. 

Ms. Sandkulla stated that she evaluates the team’s progress through their successful 

movement of the negotiations in the direction that is in the best interest of the agencies.  

A major part of the negotiations has been to review all the assets, identify their 

classification, agree on that classification, and agree that those classifications will be 

maintained for the life of the contract.  The resolution of the settlement discussions will 

address the assets that were in question, as well as all the assets in the system that were 

not included in the 2009 Water Supply Agreement as this issue has not been previously 

significant.  Achievement of those results in the negotiations is the agency’s return on 

investment. 

Director Vella made a motion, seconded by Director O’Connell, that the 

Committee recommend Board adoption of Resolution 2015-01 approving the 

reappointment of Arthur Jensen to the temporary position of Special Counsel to 

the CEO/GM and making associated finding in support of such an appointment. 

The motion carried unanimously.   

 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 6



DRAFT 

Board Policy Committee Minutes August 12, 2015 

3 

B. Annual Review and Consideration of BAWSCA’s Statement of Investment Policy:  

Ms. Sandkulla introduced BAWSCA’s Investment Advisor, Mark Creger from BLX 

Group.  

Sr. Administrative Analyst, Christina Tang reported that BAWSCA’s Investment 

Policy requires the Board’s annual review and consideration.  The Policy was last 

reviewed in November 2014 with no changes made. 

The current Policy reflects language consistent with State law, and no changes are 

recommended.   

Ms. Tang reported that all BAWSCA funds are invested in accordance with the Policy.  

The permitted investment instruments for bond proceeds associated with BAWSCA’s 

revenue bond Series 2013 A and B include Money Market Mutual Funds, Certificates 

of Deposit, and Federal Securities.   

The surcharge payments collected from member agencies and the balance held in the 

stabilization fund are currently invested in Bank of New York Money Market Funds, 

which is currently earning interest rates at 0.01%, and the US treasury securities with 

the current average yield of 0.26%.   

In response to the Board inquiry about why the investment funds are earning low 

interests rates, Ms. Tang reported that the rates are reflective of the current low interest 

rate market, as well as the conservative assumptions made in the investment strategy.  

Ms. Tang added that for the first 2 years, BAWSCA decided to move forward with the 

most conservative investment strategy for the bond proceeds, in accordance with the 

agency’s investment policy objectives of safety, liquidity and yield. 

The current investment strategy is based on the following factors and assumptions.   

Bond surcharges collected from the member agencies are used to make debt service 

payments twice a year, April 1
st
 and October 1

st
, until October 1, 2034.   

It is assumed that 70% of the annual surcharges will be collected on time, and 30% of 

the debt service payment will be supplemented by funds from the stabilization fund.   

The maturity of the stabilization funds invested in the US Treasury Securities are timed 

to coincide with the debt service payment dates so that they can be used to pay up to a 

30% shortfall from surcharge payments.  The upcoming maturity dates are September 

30, 2015, March 31, 2016, and September 30, 2016.  

The level of investment yield is directly related to the investment horizons.  To make 

the $12 M stabilization funds available to use as debt service payments in case there 

are shortfalls from the surcharge payments, majority of the securities mature in less 

than 1 year.  The securities generate an average yield of 0.26%.   

 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 7



DRAFT 

Board Policy Committee Minutes August 12, 2015 

4 

Following September 30, 2015, the next maturity date of funds invested in the US 

Treasury Securities, the CEO will re-evaluate the investment strategy and re-consider 

the assumptions being used. The evaluation will be based on a full 2-year collection 

history, the current circumstances of BAWSCA member agencies, and current market 

conditions.   

The last evaluation of the strategy occurred 5 months ago when BAWSCA re-invested 

the funds that matured on March 30
th

 2015.  With a collection history of less than 2 

years, BAWSCA did not make any changes to the investment strategy at that time.   

BAWSCA will re-invest the matured funds based on the results of the evaluation and 

the objectives of the Investment Policy which include security, liquidity, and yield.   

Director Weed asked how much money is being invested and whether a benchmark 

was established to measure against the current performance. 

Ms. Tang stated that the $12M stabilization fund balance is currently invested and 

targeted to supplement any potential shortfalls in the debt service payments.  The 

money received in the principle and interest funds are invested in the money market 

fund until used for next scheduled debt service payment.  This is the most cost-

effective strategy found due to the low market interest rates.   

Mr. Creger added that because the current investment strategy is targeting specific 

dates, there were no benchmarks established for comparison because the strategy is 

driven by fixed investment horizons as opposed to an open ended strategy. 

In response to Director Guzzetta, Ms. Sandkulla stated the 30% shortfall is an initial 

assumption that has proven to be very conservative.  There is concern with member 

agency revenues being impacted by the drought and any potential impact on 

BAWSCA.  With the ongoing drought, there will be significant financial pressure on 

the agencies and it is important that those factors pose no negative effect on 

BAWSCA’s financial situation.  Additionally, BAWSCA does not have an alternative 

source of funds to use to make its debt service payments in the event of a revenue 

shortfall, therefore the 30% assumption is appropriate.   

Ms. Sandkulla stated that she has discussed with BLX other investment options and the 

financial risks to BAWSCA if the agency has to liquidate a security early.  Having a 

full 2-year history will be helpful in re-evaluating the investment strategy. 

Director Guzzetta asked if BAWSCA looked at laddering and getting longer term 

securities that will mature on the targeted payment dates in order to get the benefit of 

better interest rates. 

Mr. Creger responded that those options were the genesis of BAWSCA’s current 

investment strategy given the concerns with revenue collection uncertainties and the 

drought.  The laddering was structured based on the $12 M stabilization fund, a 70% 

revenue assumption for each of those debt service payment amounts, and the plan to 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 8



DRAFT 

Board Policy Committee Minutes August 12, 2015 

5 

use the $12 M stabilization fund balance to invest out in periods of 6 months while 

filling in any potential void in debt service payments.  The amount of capital that was 

able to be invested to get those higher yields was a function of the starting balance, 

plus the 70% assumption.   

One mechanism for laddering out further, and still have targeted debt service dates, 

would be if the revenue assumptions were 80% or 90%.    

Mr. Creger explained that once there is sufficient comfort in the expectations of 

surcharge revenue, other public agencies with stabilization funds move away from 

specifically targeting debt service dates, and take on a laddering strategy that mature 

between 1-3years, or 1-5years. 

This type of strategy is when the concept of using a market based benchmark such as 

Bank of America 1-3 year treasury index or a 1-5 year index, because the agency is not 

targeting specific future dates.    This strategy is then managed towards a market based 

index.   

BAWSCA’s current investment strategy to target specific debt service dates protects 

BAWSCA from any potential interest rate risks.  If interest rates rise, the market value 

of fixed income securities, the treasury securities and the portfolio is going to decline.  

Because BAWSCA has no need to access the stabilization funds except for those 

specific debt service dates, it doesn’t have to realize a potential loss if interest rates 

decline. 

Alternatively, if BAWSCA moves away from targeted specific future debt service 

dates, there is the potential for losses in the future if bonds have to be sold under 

adverse market conditions.   

Director Mendall commented that while the current strategy protects BAWSCA from 

the risks of fluctuating interest rates, it also guarantees a much lower return than the 

agency can otherwise get.  For example,  if BAWSCA did a 30 year security, the worst 

case scenario would be to sell early and deal with the interest rate fluctuations.   

He commented that BAWSCA is being more conservative than it needs to be, not only 

with the 30% shortfall assumption, but with the laddering as well.  A fixed amount of 

money that is equivalent to 30%, and rotates every 6 months should protect the agency.  

The rest of the funds can be put in longer term securities.   

Director Mendall stated that BAWSCA’s extremely conservative mechanism is costing 

at least an estimate of 0.50% in earnings a year on the stabilization fund balance.  He 

suggested that the agency can do better than earning an average of 0.26% with its 

investments, and perhaps earn up to 0.4%, which can bring in approximately $60-$70K 

a year or 2% of the operating budget.   

Mr. Creger noted two important considerations, which are 1) BAWSCA’s debt service 

payment amounts are different with the October payment including principle and 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 9



DRAFT 

Board Policy Committee Minutes August 12, 2015 

6 

interest, which makes it much larger than the April payments that includes interests 

only.  2) If BAWSCA assumes the maximum of any annual year’s debt service, 

whether it is 30% or 20%, and the balance is moved out of the yield curve in pursuit of 

higher yields, the important question becomes, what amount of interest rate risk is 

within BAWSCA’s risk tolerance.   

BLX can work with BAWSCA to facilitate an analysis of how much risk the agency is 

comfortable taking with its investment strategy.   

While acknowledging the benefits of gaining higher interest earnings associated with 

taking additional interest rate risks, Mr. Creger emphasized the potential risks that 

BAWSCA should be aware of if it moves away from the specific targeted dates.  It is 

very important that BAWSCA identifies the risks the agency is comfortable with as it 

moves towards slightly more aggressive strategies.   

Mr. Creger explained that the stabilization fund balance, which is approximately $12.3 

M, must be maintained as the reserve requirement.  The total amount will change 

slightly overtime as the bonds amortize.  The amount that needs to be held in that 

stabilization fund will decline later in its life as specified in the bond documents.   

Ms. Sandkulla clarified that the committee action is to recommend Board re-

affirmation of the current investment policy.   

The investment strategy operates and is implemented by the CEO within the 

framework of the current Policy which sets forth the permitted securities and the 

objectives of security, liquidity, and yield.   

Ms. Sandkulla stated that for the early stages of the bonds, it is critical to operate under 

the investment policy’s objectives of security and liquidity. Unlike BAWSCA member 

agencies, BAWSCA does not have a long history of investments nor does BAWSCA 

have alternative funds or assets available to make debt service payments.  BAWSCA 

staff will continue to work with the BLX team to evaluate the alternative investment 

strategies and for the CEO to make a decision, if any, in the investment strategy used 

by BAWSCA. 

Following discussions, the Committee supported the CEO’s objective for security in 

the investment policy, and suggested to have a clear distinction between the Investment 

Policy, which the Board acts on, and the investment strategy being used to which the 

Board may provide input on as part of a decision by the CEO.  The Committee agreed 

that Board input on the investment strategy can serve as a process for 1) recognizing 

the changes in the financial market, and 2) documenting what the CEO/General 

Manager has discussed with the Board in determining the level of risks the agency is 

willing to take.    

Ms. Sandkulla will continue to implement an investment strategy within the realm of 

the investment policy.  For the Board’s information and discussion purposes, she will 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 10



DRAFT 

Board Policy Committee Minutes August 12, 2015 

7 

provide a layout of the investment strategy, as well as the risks associated with 

potential alternatives at the September Board meeting.     

Legal Counsel, Allison Schutte, advised the CEO/General Manager to ensure that the 

Investment Policy continues to create a clear distinction between the Reserve Funds 

that BAWSCA operates on and the bond proceeds.  The subsection of the policy for the 

Reserve Funds are more restrictive.     

Ms. Sandkulla agreed and stated that the Investment Policy is reviewed by the Board 

on an annual basis.  Given the questions that came up regarding investment returns, the 

review of the Investment Policy provided an opportunity to report on the current 

investment strategy for the bond stabilization fund and have a discussion with the 

Board.  The annual review of the Investment Policy and the Quarterly Investment 

Reports can serve as the means for the Board to provide input. 

Director O’Connell made a motion, seconded by Director Breault, that the 

Committee recommend Board re-affirmation of the current Statement of 

Investment Policy. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

C. Review and Consideration of BAWSCA’s General Reserve Policy:  Christina Tang 

reported that an annual review of the agency’s General Reserve Policy is not required 

by existing policy or government regulations.  This review was requested during the 

development of the FY 2015-16 Budget, due to concerns with the projected level of the 

General Reserve at the end of FY 2014-15 

Prior review of the General Reserve Policy was done in November 2014.  No changes 

were recommended to the Policy at that time.   

Ms. Tang explained that the General Reserve Policy is designed to protect the agency 

against unanticipated deviations in revenue and expenditure, and to stabilize variations 

in assessments to member agencies.  The guideline for the General Reserve balance is 

20% to 35% of the annual operating expenses.  There are no recommended changes to 

the current Policy. 

The General Reserve serves several key purposes.  It funds urgent and unanticipated 

needs to avoid the imposition of special assessments or additional costs to the operating 

budget, and one-time, non-recurring expenses to moderate variations in the annual 

assessments.  Examples include legal services needed for the settlement with San 

Francisco regarding asset classification, and the work associated with regional water 

demand and conservation projections. 

The current Policy is consistent with the Government Financial Officers Association 

(GFOA) recommendations and publications.  Because there are no standardized 

general reserve guideline for various types of local government or water agencies, 

BAWSCA contacted the same agencies it contacted from its prior review.  The 

agencies surveyed follow a guideline of 25% - 50% of their operating budget. 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 11



DRAFT 

Board Policy Committee Minutes August 12, 2015 

8 

Director Pierce stated that the design of the policy to protect the agency speaks to the 

way she understands the purpose of a General Reserve.  She commented that the 

previous use of the General Reserve for legal services and the one-time study for 

regional water demand and conservation projections should be emphasized as the 

function of the policy’s design, rather than its purpose. 

Director Mendall made a motion, seconded by Director O’Connell, that the 

Committee recommend Board adoption of Resolution 2015-02 to re-affirm the 

current General Reserve Policy. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

6. Reports: 

Water Supply Conditions:  Ms. Sandkulla reported that the system’s water bank storage 

level is at the lowest point of 18.1% as of August 9, 2015.  While precipitation remains 

low, there is a slight increase in comparison to last year’s as a result of recent 

thunderstorms.   

Ms. Sandkulla was pleased to report that the 9-County Bay Area Lowest Per Capita 

Consumption for June 2015 is comprised of mostly BAWSCA member agencies and San 

Francisco.  Ms. Sandkulla stated that the numbers are reflective of the investment in water 

conservation, water use-efficiency, and the response of customers. 

Director Weed commented that there is a dramatic spread in the amount of per capital 

consumption among the member agencies due to many contributing factors.  The universal 

push for water conservation may have mitigated the variables.  He questions how much 

farther can water use reduction go for one district and not the other. 

In response, Ms. Sandkulla stated that demographics play a large role in the per capita 

difference between two neighboring communities, as do the number of people in a 

household, the types of home, the lot size, and the weather.  The combination of these 

factors help explain a major portion of the residential per capita differences. 

While the region has not hit bottom, Ms. Sandkulla stated that there are some communities 

that cannot reduce further, particularly those who are in the range of 37 – 48 gpcpd.   

In response to Director Guzzetta, Ms. Sandkulla stated that the numbers represent 

residential usage only and are the numbers reported to the State by the member agencies.   

Director Guzzetta commented that the source of the data has to be looked at carefully 

because agencies account for water usage in various ways.  Additionally, when a 

household goes down to 50 gpcpd or below, there is not much left for water use outdoors 

or for further reduction.    

Ms. Sandkulla agreed and referred to the Total Deliveries graph which demonstrates the 

region’s significant reduction in outdoor water use during the summer months.  She noted 

that the pattern is “unbelievable” but BAWSCA will continue to push for water use cut 

backs because sufficient supply of water is not available.   

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 12



DRAFT 

Board Policy Committee Minutes August 12, 2015 

9 

Director Weed commented that San Francisco has a lot of water to sell if they had 

customers for it.  Ms. Sandkulla emphasized that the supply the Regional Water System 

currently has is what is available for its current customers.  The system is in a water 

shortage condition today.  The system has no access to the State Water Project, Federal 

Project, or significant amounts of groundwater supply.  The conservation the region is 

doing today is critically important to make the supply last.  As much as the rate impacts 

will be unpleasant, it is a factor that BAWSCA would rather deal with over having no 

water available.   

Director Guzzetta commented that the current demand is so low that making supply 

projections 1-5 years from now will be difficult.   The rebound will not be the same as in 

past droughts because permanent switches to water-efficient landscaping have been made.  

The 1977 drought had a slow rebound, and it will be even slower this time because of the 

permanent changes to outdoor water use.   

Director Pierce asked about building re-development and growth projections.   

Ms Sandkullla stated that re-development and new constructions are coming with much 

more efficient designs that use less water in the long-term.  There is a level of investment 

in long-term changes in building codes, recycled water and gray water use as a result of 

improved technology that are now available as well.   

A question is how long will it take to recover from the drought.  Ms. Sandkulla stated that 

history has shown that there is never a full rebound to the pre-drought level, despite 

population growth.  She stated that discussion on this topic is occurring in many venues 

including emergency planning.  

Director Guzzetta commented that as water managers, the numbers should not be seen as a 

“free board” because there will be population growth to consider for the next time when 

there is  a drought cutback.  Cutting back from 150 gpcpd to 100 gpcpd is different than 

reducing use from 75gpcpd to 40 gpcpd.  As water managers, we have to have supply that 

is extremely reliable so that future needs for cutbacks will not be extreme.   

Director Weed commented that there is water for purchase from the agricultural sector that 

would take care of the 10% urban water use statewide.   

Ms. Sandkulla presented additional data on the region’s water reduction performance.  

With the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) regulations, the overall target 

reduction for the BAWSCA agencies is 15%, and the Statewide target is 25%.   

Ms. Sandkulla was pleased to report that BAWSCA agencies and their customers achieved 

a 33% reduction for the month of June.  The state achieved 27% reduction, slightly over its 

25% target.   

Sixty-one percent of the agencies statewide did not achieve their target, while 96% of 

BAWSCA agencies did.  The one exception was Westborough Water District who had a 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 13



DRAFT 

Board Policy Committee Minutes August 12, 2015 

10 

shopping center that was demolished in June 2013.  The center is now fully occupied and 

using water which increased Westborough’s use compared to June 2013.   

Ms. Sandkulla added that for the BAWSCA agencies where there is already low water use, 

the only place for significant savings is reducing outdoor irrigation during the summer 

months.  In fact, 80% of the savings in 2014 were achieved between June and October.  

The 33% reduction achieved in June is exactly where the region needs to be in order to 

achieve the overall annual savings.   

Moving forward, BAWSCA member agencies should continue their efforts to stay on track 

in achieving the overall annual target and State mandated targets.   

BAWSCA is monitoring ongoing SWRCB activities related to drought and water supply.   

Staff is working with ACWA and the State Board to keep engaged in the discussions on 

local supply and reliability investments, and how those investments reconcile with the 

Governor’s call for demand reduction as opposed to supply reduction. 

BAWSCA is continuing to support the member agencies’ conservation efforts with the 

implementation of new regional programs such as the Free Sprinkler Nozzles Program and 

the Water Conservation 101 Education Program.   

Lastly, BAWSCA strives to accept speaking invitations from regional groups to promote 

both local and regional programs administered by BAWSCA and its member agencies.      

7. Comments by Committee Members:  There were none.   
   

8. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 2:47pm.  The next meeting is October 14, 

2015. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Nicole Sandkulla, CEO/General Manager 

NS/le 

Attachments:  1) Attendance Roster 

 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 14



DRAFT 

Board Policy Committee Minutes August 12, 2015 

11 

BAY AREA WATER SUPPLY AND CONSERVATION AGENCY 

 

BOARD POLICY COMMITTEE –  August 12, 2015 

 

Roster of Attendees: 

 

Committee Members Present 

Charlie Bronitsky, City of Foster City (Chair) 

Randy Breault, City of Brisbane/GVMID (BAWSCA Chair) 

Rob Guzzetta, California Water Service Company  

Gustav Larsson, City of Sunnyvale 

Al Mendall, City of Hayward (BAWSCA Vice Chair) 

Irene O’Connell, City of San Bruno  

Barbara Pierce, City of Redwood City 

Louis Vella, Mid-Peninsula Water District 

John Weed, Alameda County Water District 

 

Committee Members Absent 

Kirsten Keith, City of Menlo Park (Vice Chair) 

Jerry Marsalli, City of Santa Clara 

 

BAWSCA Staff: 

Nicole Sandkulla  CEO/General Manager 

Andree Johnson  Water Resources Specialist 

Christina Tang   Sr. Administrative Analyst 

Lourdes Enriquez  Assistant to the Chief Executive Officer 

Deborah Grimes  Office Manager 

Allison Schutte  Legal Counsel, Hanson Bridgett, LLP 

 

Public Attendees: 

Mark Creger   BLX Group 

Fan Lau   San Francisco Public Utilities Commission 

 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 15



(This page intentionally left blank.) 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 16



December 9, 2015 – Agenda Item #5A 

    

 
BAY AREA WATER SUPPLY AND CONSERVATION AGENCY 

 
BOARD POLICY COMMITTEE 

 

Agenda Title:  Proposed Fiscal Year 2016-17 Bond Surcharges  
 
Summary: 

This memorandum presents the proposed bond surcharges for each agency for FY 2016-
17. The surcharge would take effect on July 1, 2016.   This surcharge setting conforms to 
BAWSCA’s Revenue Bond Indenture (Indenture) for the Series 2013A and 2013B revenue 
bonds. 
 
Recommendation: 
That the Committee recommend Board approval of the proposed FY 2016-17 bond 
surcharges as presented in this memorandum.  
 
Discussion: 

The bond surcharge for each member agency is a fixed amount each fiscal year as adopted 
by the BAWSCA Board to ensure collection of necessary revenue to pay that year’s 
obligated debt service as defined in the indenture.  Bond surcharges were first collected in 
FY 2013-14.   
 
The annual surcharges for FY 2016-17 are calculated by multiplying the obligated debt 
service in 2017 by each agency’s percentage of total wholesale customer purchases in FY 
2014-15, and adding a “true up” adjustment for the FY 2014-15 surcharges.  This “true up” 
adjustment is used to reflect each agency’s actual percentage of water purchases in FY 
2014-15 and to reimburse BAWSCA for some expenses incurred in FY 2014-15 in 
connection with the bond administration that were paid through BAWSCA’s FY 2014-15 
operating budget.   
 
Per the Indenture, the Rate Stabilization Fund at the Trustee has been reviewed and no 
replenishment amount is determined necessary at this time.  One-twelfth of the annual 
surcharge, or the monthly surcharge, will be included in the first water bill from San 
Francisco sent to the agencies each month.   
 
The proposed FY 2016-17 bond surcharge for each agency is shown in Table 1.  Table 2 
shows how the “true up” adjustment for each member agency is determined and included in 
the proposed FY 2016-17 surcharge amount.  Table 3 indicates how much the capital 
recovery payment cost would be in FY 2014-15 (column A) if BAWSCA didn’t issue the 
bonds to prepay the capital debt that the agencies owed to San Francisco.  The actual 
savings to each agency in FY 2014-15 (column D) are calculated accordingly.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 17



December 9, 2015 – Agenda Item #5A 

    

 

 

Table 1. Proposed BAWSCA FY2016-17 Bond Surcharges 

 
  

Agency

Annual 

Bond 

Surcharge 

Monthly 

Bond 

Surcharge 

Agency

Annual 

Bond 

Surcharge 

Monthly 

Bond 

Surcharge 
Alameda County WD $1,558,173 $129,848.00 Mid Pen WD $475,458 $39,621.00

Brisbane Water $56,122 $4,677.00 Millbrae $357,620 $29,802.00

Burlingame $721,022 $60,085.00 Milpitas $947,301 $78,942.00

Coastside County WD $312,002 $26,000.00 Mountain View $1,418,842 $118,237.00

CWS - Bear Gulch $2,080,590 $173,383.00 North Coast WD $705,660 $58,805.00

CWS - Mid Peninsula $2,576,594 $214,716.00 Palo Alto $1,800,952 $150,079.00

CWS - South SF $1,038,931 $86,578.00 Purissima Hills WD $302,169 $25,181.00

Daly City $591,866 $49,322.00 Redwood City $1,536,238 $128,020.00

East Palo Alto WD $260,819 $21,735.00 San Bruno $169,848 $14,154.00

Estero Municipal ID $859,152 $71,596.00 San Jose (North) $978,597 $81,550.00

Guadalupe Valley $74,693 $6,224.00 Santa Clara $320,384 $26,699.00

Hayward $2,659,992 $221,666.00 Stanford University $414,614 $34,551.00

Hillsborough $470,574 $39,214.00 Sunnyvale $1,412,930 $117,744.00

Menlo Park $474,746 $39,562.00 Westborough WD $108,890 $9,074.00

Total $24,684,779 $2,057,065

FY 2016-17 FY 2016-17

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 18



December 9, 2015 – Agenda Item #5A 

    

 
Table 2. Proposed BAWSCA FY2016-17 Bond Surcharge Breakdowns 

 

 
 
  

Agency

Annual 

Surcharge 

Estimated Based 

on FY 2012-13 

Actual Purchase

Annual 

Surcharge 

Should Be 

Based on FY 

2014-15 Actual 

Purchase

True-up 

Amount for 

FY 2014-15

Annual 

Surcharge 

Estimated Based 

on FY 2014-15 

Actual Purchase

Annual 

Surcharge 

plus True-ups

Alameda County WD $1,511,691 $1,535,237 $23,546 $1,534,627 $1,558,173

Brisbane Water $53,960 $55,052 $1,092 $55,030 $56,122

Burlingame $694,298 $707,801 $13,503 $707,520 $721,022

Coastside County WD $279,227 $295,673 $16,446 $295,555 $312,002

CWS - Bear Gulch $2,013,862 $2,047,633 $33,771 $2,046,819 $2,080,590

CWS - Mid Peninsula $2,340,996 $2,459,284 $118,288 $2,458,307 $2,576,594

CWS - South SF $1,149,093 $1,094,229 ($54,864) $1,093,794 $1,038,931

Daly City $689,332 $640,726 ($48,606) $640,472 $591,866

East Palo Alto WD $346,148 $303,544 ($42,604) $303,423 $260,819

Estero Municipal ID $675,688 $767,572 $91,885 $767,267 $859,152

Guadalupe Valley $44,830 $59,773 $14,944 $59,749 $74,693

Hayward $2,581,371 $2,621,203 $39,831 $2,620,161 $2,659,992

Hillsborough $541,500 $506,137 ($35,362) $505,936 $470,574

Menlo Park $540,091 $507,520 ($32,572) $507,318 $474,746

Mid Pen WD $500,598 $488,125 ($12,473) $487,931 $475,458

Millbrae $380,440 $369,103 ($11,337) $368,957 $357,620

Milpitas $1,072,174 $1,009,938 ($62,236) $1,009,537 $947,301

Mountain View $1,516,412 $1,467,919 ($48,494) $1,467,335 $1,418,842

North Coast WD $418,187 $562,035 $143,848 $561,812 $705,660

Palo Alto $1,889,492 $1,845,589 ($43,903) $1,844,855 $1,800,952

Purissima Hills WD $332,451 $317,373 ($15,078) $317,247 $302,169

Redwood City $1,552,092 $1,544,472 ($7,620) $1,543,858 $1,536,238

San Bruno $335,951 $252,950 ($83,001) $252,849 $169,848

San Jose (North) $751,039 $864,990 $113,951 $864,646 $978,597

Santa Clara $363,049 $341,785 ($21,265) $341,649 $320,384

Stanford University $356,532 $385,650 $29,118 $385,496 $414,614

Sunnyvale $1,590,419 $1,501,973 ($88,446) $1,501,376 $1,412,930

Westborough WD $151,581 $130,261 ($21,320) $130,209 $108,890

Totals $24,672,503 $24,683,547 $11,044 $24,673,735 $24,684,779

FY 2014-15 FY 2016-17

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 19



December 9, 2015 – Agenda Item #5A 

    

Table 3. Actual Savings to Each Agency for FY 2014-15 
 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agency

SFPUC 

Capital 

Recovery 

Payment

Annual 

Surcharge 

Collected in 

FY 14-15

True-ups To 

Be Collected 

or Refunded 

in FY 16-17

BAWSCA 

Annual 

Surcharge 

Plus True-

ups

Actual 

Savings

A B C D = B + C E = A - D

Alameda County WD $1,753,949 $1,511,691 $23,546 $1,535,237 $218,712

Brisbane Water $62,895 $53,960 $1,092 $55,052 $7,843

Burlingame $808,635 $694,298 $13,503 $707,801 $100,834

Coastside County WD $337,795 $279,227 $16,446 $295,673 $42,122

CWS - Bear Gulch $2,339,342 $2,013,862 $33,771 $2,047,633 $291,709

CWS - Mid Peninsula $2,809,637 $2,340,996 $118,288 $2,459,284 $350,353

CWS - South SF $1,250,115 $1,149,093 ($54,864) $1,094,229 $155,885

Daly City $732,005 $689,332 ($48,606) $640,726 $91,279

East Palo Alto WD $346,787 $346,148 ($42,604) $303,544 $43,243

Estero Municipal ID $876,922 $675,688 $91,885 $767,572 $109,349

Guadalupe Valley $68,289 $44,830 $14,944 $59,773 $8,515

Hayward $2,994,623 $2,581,371 $39,831 $2,621,203 $373,420

Hillsborough $578,242 $541,500 ($35,362) $506,137 $72,105

Menlo Park $579,821 $540,091 ($32,572) $507,520 $72,302

Mid Pen WD $557,664 $500,598 ($12,473) $488,125 $69,539

Millbrae $421,686 $380,440 ($11,337) $369,103 $52,583

Milpitas $1,153,815 $1,072,174 ($62,236) $1,009,938 $143,877

Mountain View $1,677,040 $1,516,412 ($48,494) $1,467,919 $209,122

North Coast WD $642,104 $418,187 $143,848 $562,035 $80,068

Palo Alto $2,108,514 $1,889,492 ($43,903) $1,845,589 $262,925

Purissima Hills WD $362,586 $332,451 ($15,078) $317,373 $45,213

Redwood City $1,764,499 $1,552,092 ($7,620) $1,544,472 $220,028

San Bruno $288,985 $335,951 ($83,001) $252,950 $36,036

San Jose (North) $988,218 $751,039 $113,951 $864,990 $123,228

Santa Clara $390,476 $363,049 ($21,265) $341,785 $48,691

Stanford University $440,590 $356,532 $29,118 $385,650 $54,940

Sunnyvale $1,715,946 $1,590,419 ($88,446) $1,501,973 $213,973

Westborough WD $148,818 $151,581 ($21,320) $130,261 $18,557

Totals $28,200,000 $24,672,503 $11,044 $24,683,547 $3,516,453

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 20



December 9, 2015 – Agenda Item #5A 

    

Background: 

BAWSCA’s Revenue Bond Series 2013A and Series 2013B (Taxable) were issued to 
prepay the capital debt that the agencies owed San Francisco.  The bond transaction and 
the prepayment program will generate approximately $62.3 million in net present value 
savings over the term of the bonds, or about 17% of the $356.1 million in principal prepaid 
from bond proceeds to San Francisco at the end of February 2013.  
 
BAWSCA has been collecting the bond surcharge from member agencies since July 2013 
through the SFPUC as a separate item on their monthly water bills to member agencies.  
FY 2016-17 will be the fourth year for BAWSCA to collect the bond surcharge payments 
that are used to make debt service payments on BAWSCA’s revenue bonds.    
 
Calculating the “True Up” Adjustment 
Consistent with the Indenture, the FY 2016-17 bond surcharge setting includes a “true up” 
adjustment included in the calculation.  This “true up” adjustment is used to reflect each 
agency’s actual percentage of water purchases in FY 2014-15 and to reimburse BAWSCA 
for some expenses incurred in FY 2014-15 in connection with the bond administration that 
were paid through BAWSCA’s FY 2014-15 operating budget.  Those expenses include the 
fees to Bank of New York for its Trustee services and the costs of legal, financial advisor, 
investment advisor, and arbitrage rebate consultant.  A “true up” adjustment is anticipated 
every year as part of the calculation of the Annual Bond Surcharge. 
 
The annual surcharges collected from the member agencies in FY 2014-15 were calculated 
by multiplying the obligated debt service in 2015 by each agency’s percentage of total 
wholesale customer purchases in FY 2012-13.  FY 2012-13 purchases were used as a 
surrogate for FY 2014-15 purchases, which were not known when the FY 2014-15 bond 
surcharges were adopted.   
 
Now that the actual wholesale customer purchases for FY 2014-15 and the actual expenses 
incurred in FY 2014-15 in connection with the bond administration are available, the actual 
surcharges for FY 2014-15 are calculated again by multiplying a sum of the obligated debt 
service in 2015 and the actual expenses incurred in FY 2014-15 by each agency’s 
percentage of total wholesale customer purchases in FY 2014-15.  The difference between 
the surcharges that were actually collected in FY 2014-15, which were based on the 
surrogate purchase values, and the actual surcharges for FY 2014-15, which are based on 
actual FY 2014-15 purchases, are one component of the “true up” adjustments to be 
included in the annual surcharge setting for FY 2016-17.   
 
The second component of the “true up” adjustment is inclusion of $11,044 of actual 
expenses incurred in FY 2014-15 in connection with the bond administration, which 
represents 0.04% of the annual debt service of the bonds in 2017.  Pursuant to the 
Prepayment and Collection Agreement between BAWSCA and San Francisco, BAWSCA 
shall reimburse San Francisco for specific expenses incurred for compliance with tax-
exempt regulations. These charges have not been billed at this time.  A “true up” adjustment 
for FY 2016-17 will be included in the surcharge setting for FY 2018-19.   
 
 
 
 

 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 21



(This page intentionally left blank.) 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 22



December 9, 2015 – Agenda Item #5B 
   

 

  

BAY AREA WATER SUPPLY AND CONSERVATION AGENCY 

BOARD POLICY COMMITTEE 

 
Agenda Title: Authorization to Extend Office Lease 

Summary:  The lease for office space at 155 Bovet Road expires September 30, 2016.  
The terms of the current lease offer an option to extend at market rate.  A lease rate of 
$3.75 per square foot has been proposed by the property management’s agent.  This rate is 
in line with the market and represents the best value in terms of efficiency and moving 
costs. The current lease rate of $2.48 per square foot continues for the first three months of 
FY 2016-17.  It is recommended to extend the current lease for a period of five years.  

Fiscal Impact:    

There will be no fiscal impact in FY 2015-16.  The rate change would not occur until FY 
2016-17.   Based on the existing office square footage, the recommended action would 
result in a net monthly rent increase of $4,233 beginning October 1, 2016.    

Recommendation: 

That the Committee recommend Board authorization of the CEO/General Manager to 
extend the current lease for a period of five years.  

Discussion: 

A review of comparable properties, as well as moving costs, indicates that it is cost-effective 
for BAWSCA to remain at its current location. The extended lease rate is in line with 
comparable office space in San Mateo.  The current lease rate is $2.48 per square foot, 
including common area maintenance expenses. Under the recommended lease, the lease 
rate starting October 1, 2016 would be $3.75 per square foot with an annual 3% increase.     

Examination of comparable properties in the nearby vicinity has confirmed that the current 
market lease rate per square foot is higher than BAWSCA’s current lease rate.  In addition, 
the real estate broker advising BAWSCA states that lease rates are increasing rapidly due 
to the improving economic conditions and the attractiveness of this part of the Bay Area. 
The current site for the BAWSCA offices was chosen many years ago due to its central 
location in the BAWSCA service area and ease of access to San Francisco.  The building 
continues to offer the best value in the market, and the competitive set of comparable 
properties is substantially more expensive. 

Since BAWSCA’s initial conversation with its real estate broker, rates in our current location 
have increased to $4.00 per square foot.  This upward trend is expected to continue in the 
coming months due to market conditions.  It would be in the best interest of BAWSCA to 
enter into a multi-year lease at this time in order to lock in the lease rate of $3.75.  

In November, the CEO signed a letter to pursue the option of extending the existing lease 
agreement.  The property manager’s agent responded with a lease extension proposal that  
contains the proposed new lease rate of $3.75 per square foot and makes no other changes 
to the existing lease agreement.  The agreement has been reviewed by legal counsel.  

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 23



December 9, 2015 – Agenda Item #5B 

 2 

Alternatives Examined: 

Alternatives examined include: 1) relocate to a different site in nearby vicinity, 2) relocate to 
a different site within the Bay Area, and 3) extend lease at current location for five years. 
 
Alternative #1 - Relocate to a different site in the nearby vicinity:  Alternative office space in 
the nearby vicinity has been explored with results showing few available local properties 
having comparable rates.  Most comparable properties had lease rates higher than the 
proposed rate and would require tenant improvements to match BAWSCA’s office needs to 
what is available.  Relocating to a different site would also incur additional one-time moving 
costs:  expenses for moving furniture, equipment, and data lines; costs associated with the 
address change (e.g., letter head, business cards, notifications); and staff time for moving.  
This alternative is not recommended as the overall cost of relocating would not result in 
significant savings.  

Alternative #2 – Relocate to a different site within the Bay Area:  Currently available office 
space in different locations in the Bay Area, including across the Bay, was also researched. 
While there were less expensive properties available, results were limited. Available 
properties were less centrally located and would require tenant improvements.  With Bay 
Area traffic ranking the third worst in the nation, moving the BAWSCA office to a less central 
location would result in significantly increased travel times for member agency staff, Board 
members, and BAWSCA staff, resulting in decreased efficiency.    

As with Alternative #1, relocating to a different site would incur additional one-time costs for 
moving furniture, equipment, data lines, address change (e.g., letter head, business cards, 
notifications), as well as staff time for moving. Overall the cost of relocating would not result 
in significant savings, would result in significant decreased staff efficiency, and therefore, 
this alternative is not recommended. 

Alternative #3 - Extending the lease in current location for a period of five years:  This 
alternative is recommended as the most cost-effective and efficient alternative.       

 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 24



December 9, 2015 – Agenda Item #6D 
 

 

 
155 Bovet Road, Suite 650 

San Mateo, California 94402 
(650) 349-3000 tel. (650) 349-8395 fax 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:   BAWSCA Board of Directors 

FROM:  Nicole Sandkulla, CEO/General Manager  

DATE:   December 4, 2015 

SUBJECT:  Chief Executive Officer/General Manager’s Letter 

Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELO): 

BAWSCA has completed the update of its Regional Model Water Efficient Landscape 
Ordinance (BAWSCA Model Ordinance).  The update brings 2009 BAWSCA Model Ordinance 
into compliance with the 2015 Department of Water Resources (DWR) Model Water Efficient 
Landscape Ordinance (MWELO), which was updated in July to comply with a directive from the 
Governor’s April 1st Executive Order.  All water agencies are required to either (1) adopt the 
revised DWR MWELO or a local ordinance that is at least as effective by December 1, 2015, or 
(2) adopt a regional ordinance (e.g. the BAWSCA Model Ordinance) that is at least as effective 
as the DWR MWELO by February 1, 2015.   
 
The BAWSCA Model Ordinance was developed by a working group of BAWSCA member 
agencies.  The BAWSCA Model Ordinance has been distributed to the member agencies and 
will be adopted in the coming months by those agencies that opt to implement it.   
 
 
Website Redesign  – Update:   

The BAWSCA website redesign project is progressing on schedule, with an anticipated launch 
date of January 2016.  BAWSCA staff is currently testing the beta site and finalizing the website 
content. Training on the new content management system in scheduled for December 11th.  
Among the features to be included in the new site are: a dedicated water conservation web 
portal; a member agency access site for document sharing; and interactive infographics for 
accessing water use and demographic data.  
 
 
BAWSCA Staff Participation in the American Water Resources Association Conference:  

In November, BAWSCA staff presented “The Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation 
Agency’s Long-Term Reliable Water Supply Strategy” at the American Water Resources 
Association 2015 Annual Water Resources Conference in Denver.  The conference program 
featured a wide-range of water resources planning, policy, education and technical topics and 
included more than 1,000 water industry professionals from around the world.  
 
The BAWSCA presentation described BAWSCA’s Long-Term Reliable Water Supply Strategy 
(Strategy), including information about Strategy development and implementation, and was 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 25



December 9, 2015 – Agenda Item #6D 
 

 

featured in a session focused on California water issues.  Audience members were particularly 
interested in regulatory challenges of different water management projects, methodologies for 
the 2014 water demand study, and impacts that the historic drought has had on implementation 
activities. Other notable topics included in the conference were Integrated Water Resources 
Management, the latest urban water use trends in the West, potable water reuse, and regional 
water supply partnerships.   
 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 26



Board Policy Committee 

Policy Calendar  through April 2016 

Key:  R=Report, D = Discussion,  S = Study Session, A = Action 

BPC Meeting  Purpose  Issue or Topic  

December 2015 D 

D&A 

R&D 

BAWSCA Mid-Year Review of FY 2015-16 Work Plan and Budget 

Consideration of BAWSCA Bond Surcharges for FY 2016-17  

Work Plan and Budget Planning for FY 2016-17 

February 2016 R&D Presentation of Preliminary FY 2016-17 Work Plan and Budget 

April 2016 D&A Presentation of proposed FY 2016-17 Work Plan and Budget  

December 9, 2015– Agenda Item #6E 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 27



(This page intentionally left blank.) 

December 9, 2015 Board Policy Committee Agenda Packet Page 28




